

EXECUTIVE

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Executive held on Tuesday May 19 2009 at 5.00 pm at Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

PRESENT: Councillor Nick Stanton (Chair)

Councillor Kim Humphreys

Councillor Jeff Hook Councillor Tim McNally Councillor Adele Morris Councillor David Noakes Councillor Paul Noblet Councillor Lisa Rajan Councillor Lewis Robinson

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Paul Kyriacou.

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

No late items were identified.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

No disclosures were made.

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

There were no public questions.

5. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the open minutes of the meeting held on April 28 2009 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the chair.

6. DEPUTATION REQUESTS

RESOLVED:

That the deputation requests be heard.

Wilsons Residents Association

The deputation spokesperson addressed the meeting in relation to the sale of South House. The deputation stated that the land behind South House had been effectively part of Lucas Gardens, with full public access for as long as residents could remember and residents were concerned, with the sale of South House, that some of the land would be sacrificed for short term financial gain. The spokesperson advised that there has been much community and local concern about this issue.

Berth Holders at South Dock Marina

The deputation spokesperson addressed the meeting and outlined the ongoing discussions with the council relating to the new terms and conditions at South Dock Marina. Various issues were raised and Councillor Stanton gave the deputation a personal assurance to investigate the matter and establish relevant facts. The deputation indicated that there were a number of forthcoming evictions which the executive have asked be suspended, pending this investigation by Councillor Stanton.

7. ADOPTION OF THE ROAD SAFETY PLAN

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the outcomes of the public consultation and the subsequent amendments to the road safety plan were considered.
- 2. That the contents of the report were considered and the road safety plan adopted.
- 3. That it be noted that the effectiveness of the agreed plan would be continually monitored and in the meantime the feasibility of the following should be investigated:-
 - Work with London's Strategic Camera Partnership to roll out speed averaging cameras in place of fixed safety cameras.
 - Explore the possibility of taking over traffic speed enforcement using the Sustainable Communities Act.
 - Work with Transport for London and neighbouring boroughs on road safety education, as it is recognised that 50% of all

vehicles start and end journeys outside Southwark.

- Work with Transport for London and Central Government to amend our road safety objectives as they amend theirs.
- With regard heavy and light goods vehicles operated by Southwark or their contractors, specify that all new vehicles are fitted and existing vehicles are retro fitted (if feasible) with side impact bars to reduce the likelihood of pedestrians and cyclists falling under the wheels.

8. SUPPORT FOR SOUTHWARK BUSINESS'S IN THE RECESSION

RESOLVED:

That the content of the report be noted and the following enhancements to services to support local businesses be agreed:

- a) Promote the small business rate relief scheme, as set out in paragraph 10 of the report
- b) That the Supply Southwark Group be instructed to develop and implement at the earliest opportunity a method to promote opportunities for Southwark businesses to supply to the council by advertising contracts locally, as set out in paragraph 18 of the report
- c) Make best endeavours to accelerate payments to suppliers as set out in paragraph 23 of the report and
- d) Permit businesses that are commercial property tenants of the council to pay rents monthly rather than quarterly, as set out in paragraphs 27 to 31 of the report.

9. STRATEGIC VISION FOR ELMINGTON ESTATE

RESOLVED:

- 1. That a revised strategy for the regeneration of the Elmington Estate, be agreed as follows, thereby amending the executive decision of November 22 2005:
 - That officers bring forward a scheme to develop the two cleared sites designated as A & B in Appendix 1 of the report with a mixed tenure housing development.
 - ii. That officers review community provision in the area and that no dedicated community facility or tenants' hall is provided as part of the Elmington sites A and B redevelopment.
- 2. That the delegation of decisions on detailed implementation of recommendation 1.i) to the strategic director of regeneration and neighbourhoods be agreed and request a report back to executive

on the final decision for disposal.

- 3. That it be agreed that consideration is given to preparing a Challenge Fund bid to the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to build new council homes on alternative suitable council-owned sites but not on the Elmington Estate.
- 4. That an option appraisal exercise is undertaken for blocks designated 1-14 in Appendix 1 and Table 2 of the report, and that recommendations are reported back to executive by September 2009.
- 5. That the preparation for investment works at blocks 6,12 and 13 be continued in line with the council's Decent Homes programme, in parallel with the option appraisal exercise be noted.

10. CORE STRATEGY - PREFERRED OPTIONS

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the Core Strategy Preferred Options (appendix A) with any changes (set out in table 1 and 2) be agreed for consultation.
- 2. That the consultation plan and report (appendix B and C) be noted. On policy 7, family homes, officers should draft appropriate wording to deal with concerns about the issue raised on two double bedrooms in 2, 3 and 3 plus bedroom properties based on 50-100% range and a variety of tenure.
- 3. That the draft Sustainability Appraisal (appendix D) be noted.
- 4. That the Equalities Impact Assessment (appendix E) be noted.

11. MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL ASSEMBLY - APRIL 8 2009

RESOLVED:

Cross River Tram

- That the continuing cross-party support in Southwark for the cross river tram be noted and disappointment be reiterated that the Mayor of London has chosen not to support the project by removing a commitment to develop the project from the Transport for London business plan.
- That it is believed that the tram would increase access to employment for people from some of London's most deprived areas, support the regeneration of Elephant and Castle, Aylesbury and Peckham and provide construction jobs, while providing a clean,

- green transport solution for one of the few areas in central London without a tube line.
- 3. That the decision to kick-start the East London Line extension 2B, which with the cross river tram would transform transport options in Southwark be welcomed.
- 4. That the chancellor's announcement in his 2008 pre-budget report of £20bn in fiscal stimulus to be brought forward before April 2010 be further noted.
- 5. That it be noted that the leader of the council wrote to transport minister Lord Adonis, seeking funding for the cross river tram from this fiscal stimulus and that the response said that the cross river tram does not currently qualify for money from the pre-budget report fiscal stimulus, where existing funding is brought forward, because spending on the project is not currently part of Transport for London's business plan: It further notes, however, that the response also said: 'Should the Mayor [of London] decide to fund the project, we would be happy to discuss with him the possibility of delivering it expediently.'
- 6. That executive write to the Mayor of London asking him to make the cross river tram project part of Transport for London's business plan.
- 7. That the executive to write to the Chancellor asking him to review the decision to only bring forward existing funding in the fiscal stimulus, and make provision for the funding of the tram as part of the fiscal stimulus package.
- 8. That the executive member for regeneration's assertion at the January council meeting that he would "continue [to seek] funding sources for the project, be they public or private, through a variety of forums such as Cross River Partnership be noted.
- 9. That the executive member for regeneration to continue to seek such funding sources in his role as chair of the Cross River Partnership and update members on his current progress.

RESOLVED:

Youth Provision

- 1. That it be noted that in the Liberal Democrats' 2006 election manifesto the party pledged to carry out a full audit of youth facilities in the borough. It is noted that in July 2007, the executive agreed a report entitled 'Activities for Young People Things to do, places to go, someone to talk to in Southwark' which reported the results of the audit that had been undertaken.
- 2. That it be noted that the audit informed the creation of the Children

and Young Peoples Partnership's Things to do priority areas and resulted in a rebalancing of spending on youth services and facilities across Southwark, compensating for historic under-investment in parts of the borough.

- 3. That it be noted that last year's joint area review the council's youth services were given only an 'adequate' or two star rating.
- 4. That it be noted that in the 2008 residents' survey, youth facilities were the services that residents thought were most important and also the services that they were most dissatisfied with. It notes that the same was true in the 2006 residents' survey and that despite massive government grants for children and young people and significant capital investment in youth facilities by the council, residents' satisfaction with youth facilities has not significantly improved.
- 5. That it be noted that as a result of the government's failure to take account of the significant additional pressures placed on the council's budget by the recession, the executive was forced to identify £17.3m of savings in the 2009-10 budget. It is noted that £381,000 (4.5%) of the savings were from the youth service budget, and that this amount equates to approximately 0.3% of the budget for 11-19 year old and youth services division.
- 6. That it is noted that the £381,000 savings identified from youth services will be generated from the modernisation and integration of the division and will not involve cuts in front-line services in the youth service. It is further noted that £150,000 of new funding was allocated to the youth service from the WNF programme for workbased learning sites.
- 7. That it is acknowledged that Southwark has unacceptably high levels of teenage conceptions and child obesity and recognises these are key shared strategic priority for Young Southwark, the primary care trust and the executive. It is further noted the coordinated activities undertaken by these agencies to address these problems, including:
 - a) The roll out of a healthy schools accreditation which has seen 65% of Southwark Schools attain Health Schools status.
 - b) The recent "Team Around the Issue" event on March 11, where officers came together to discuss approaches to the 5 priority areas, including childhood obesity.
 - c) The Teenage Pregnancy Summit on March 23 2009 which looked at new approaches to tackling this issue.
- 8. That it be noted that Southwark's levels of young people not in employment, education or training (NEETs) were the third highest in London in 2007, but notes that the number of Southwark young people in NEET has fallen from 875 in 2004 to 395 (54.8% fall) as a

result of coordinated work by the council, including:

- a) Targeted work with those with poor attendance at end of Year 11 (e.g. 5 hot spot schools targeted and being support).
- b) Development of Foundation 2 Work programme in Southwark College where 40 young people NEET have been enrolled since January 2009 and therefore off the NEET register.
- 9. That the children's services and education scrutiny sub-committee's youth provision review, which was discussed by the executive in December last year be noted. It be noted that at that meeting, the executive agreed to ensure that the findings of the review would be taken into account in the current review of youth services across the borough. It be noted that officers checked this course of action with the chair of children's scrutiny and agreed with him that the executive would report back as part of that review process in April 2009.
- 10. That it be noted that the youth service is currently being reviewed and restructured, with a view to meeting government demands for an integrated and targeted youth support service. It be noted that the restructure is aimed at streamlining management structures and will not affect front-line staff or services.
- 11. That concern that residents' satisfaction with youth facilities remains low be expressed and that teenage pregnancy, obesity and the number of young people not in education, employment or training remain serious challenges for the borough.
- 12. That the review of youth services offered by the council be endorsed which is currently being undertaken and calls on the executive to report back to council assembly on the outcome of the review, given its overwhelming importance to all members.

RESOLVED:

Bus Route 42

- 1. That it is believed that the extension of the route of the 42 bus from North Dulwich to Sainsbury's via East Dulwich Grove to Sainsbury's on Dog Kennel Hill would benefit Village, East Dulwich and South Camberwell wards.
- 2. That the cross party work over many years to promote the proposed new route be noted.
- 3. That the planning consent obtained by Sainsbury's to accommodate the turn-round on their premises providing a proper terminus for this route with facilities for drivers and standstill space for the buses as

- presently the buses terminating in Sunray Avenue cause noise and inconvenience to residents be welcomed.
- 4. That the previous delays by Transport for London (TfL) are regretted, and welcomes a recent undertaking to review the business case.
- 5. That the widespread support for the extension evidenced by the responses to the recent Village ward councillors' questionnaire and the interest shown by "Southwark News" be noted.
- 6. That executive ensure that the council as a whole promotes the extension with vigour and that the executive member for environment writes to London Mayor Boris Johnson requesting that the re-routing proposal be given high priority.
- 7. That these concerns be fed into the overview and scrutiny work on buses.

RESOLVED:

A Borough-wide Food Strategy

- 1. That the executive request that overview and scrutiny committee be asked to consider allocating the issue of a Borough Wide Food Strategy and points raised in the motion as set out below to one of their un-themed committees:
 - a) Notes the vitality, vibrancy and diversity of Southwark's food industries and cultures.
 - b) Notes that the production, processing and manufacturing, transport, storage and distribution, sale, purchasing, preparation, consumption and disposal of food within and beyond Southwark has significant implications for health, environmental, economic, social/cultural and security issues across the borough.
- 2. That the value of allotments to the production of sustainable and healthy and local food in the borough be noted, and adopt the following action:
 - a) Improve the quality of information available to residents, by improving the council's website.
 - b) Look for ways to increase the borough's allotments, as some of the allotments in the borough are on waiting lists only.
 - c) Engage with the London Food Board to look at practical ways in which food can be grown sustainably.
 - d) Provide an undertaking that the council will not close any allotments, and ensure rents are affordable by the many, not the

few.

- 3. That the development of a borough wide food strategy be undertaken with a view to:
 - a) improving the health and reduce the health inequalities of people living and working in Southwark
 - b) reducing poverty and deprivation
 - c) reducing the negative environmental impacts of Southwark's food system
 - d) supporting a vibrant food economy
 - e) celebrating and promoting Southwark's food culture
 - f) enhancing Southwark's food security
 - g) encouraging healthy eating in schools.
- 4. That the executive to report back to council assembly within 6 months on progress in developing the strategy.

RESOLVED:

Council Housing for Southwark Council

- 1. That the announcement by the Prime Minister in a speech in January 2009 be welcomed that: "...if local authorities can convince us that they can deliver quickly and cost effectively more of the housing that Britain needs, and if local authorities can build social housing in sustainable communities that meets the aspirations of the British people for the 21st century, then we will be prepared to give you our full backing and put aside any of the barriers that stand in the way of this happening."
- 2. That it is believed that Southwark is a local authority which has proven its ability to build sustainable communities and to deliver quickly and cost effectively and notes that there are three barriers to the council building new council homes:
 - a) the fact that the council is unable to access grant from the homes and communities agency (HCA) to support the cost of building new homes.
 - b) the high interest rate applying when the council borrows money under current prudential borrowing rules, which set the effective interest rate at an average of historic rates, rather than the current public works loan board (PWLB) rate.
 - c) uncertainty over the future of housing revenue account (HRA) subsidy during the joint CLG/Treasury review, which has not yet

issued any proposals.

- 3. That it be noted with concern that despite past commitments and promises from senior Labour politicians, including the current Deputy Leader of the Labour Party, about the 'fourth option' and council home building, these three barriers have remained in place.
- 4. That the government be called upon to use the next budget to make provision for Southwark and other councils to access grant from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) and to amend borrowing rules to take account of current low interest rates, thereby allowing us to build new council homes.
- 5. That executive write to the Prime Minister with immediate effect seeking a clear and unequivocal guarantee that his January announcement will be followed by genuine action, rather than repeating the empty promises of the past, which have left so many across the country trapped on housing waiting lists.
- 6. That disappointment is expressed to the £100 million allocated to the Challenge Fund to develop new properties which has to be shared by all authorities.

RESOLVED:

Surrey Canal Road Station

- 1. That the joint funding of £60 million from the Department for Transport and £15 million from Transport for London (TfL) to complete Phase 2 of the East London Line Extension (ELLX) be welcomed.
- 2. That it be noted that funding for a new station at Surrey Canal Road, just over the border in Lewisham, has not yet been secured as part of the scheme. It notes the considerable local demand in South Bermondsey and North Peckham for a new station there and the strong regeneration case for the station.
- 3. That the leaders of all the political groups to write jointly to the Mayor of London and the Transport Secretary urging them to fund this vital piece of public transport infrastructure as part of the planned Phase 2 works. It calls on the executive to work with the Mayor of Lewisham to effectively lobby for the new station.
- 4. That the strong support for a station at Surrey Canal Road from Millwall FC be noted and calls on the leaders, in their letter to the Mayor, to request that TfL officers meet with Millwall representatives to discuss the proposals and ways to involve the club.
- 5. That the leader of the council to also support Lambeth Council in any bid made for a Brixton ELLX stop, for a better linked inner south

London.

6. That the receipt of the letter from the Mayor of London dated May 15 2009 concerning Surrey Canal Road Station be noted. This confirms that the decision and provision of a new station at Surrey Canal Road will follow an assessment process and discussions with the Department for Transport on the additional funding required.

RESOLVED:

Fuel Poverty Bill

That it be noted that the Fuel Poverty Bill did not succeed.

12. REVENUES AND BENEFITS STRATEGIC APPROACH

Stephanie Fleck, head of legal advices provided legal advice to the executive on this item. Deborah Collins, strategic director of legal and democratic services had left the executive meeting prior to the discussion and consideration of this item.

RESOLVED:

- That it be noted that the existing contractual arrangements with Liberata UK Ltd for the revenues and benefits service have not been extended. The contract has a termination period which expires on March 31 2011 at which time new arrangements will need to be in place.
- That it be noted that consideration needs to be given to what the arrangements will be following termination and that an alternative service needs to be arranged and that a range of options including those outlined in the report will be analysed prior to a gateway 1 report being presented.
- 3. That a gateway 1 report be received outlining the preferred option for approval in autumn 2009.

13. VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Reference to the Housing Act 1980 in the appendix (under 'legislation') should be amended to read the Housing Act 1985.

RESOLVED:

1. That the asset management strategy for the voluntary and community sector (VCS) property portfolio (Appendix 1 of the report) be approved.

- 2. That the asset management plan for the voluntary community sector property portfolio be approved.
- 3. That the asset transfer policy and protocols be approved.
- 4. That the rent and lettings policy be reaffirmed and agreed that it will not be reviewed until the voluntary community sector strategy has been in place for at least two years.

14. ACTION PLAN IN RESPONSE TO THE REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS PREPARED BY PROFESSOR DEREK GARDINER INTO THE CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDING THE DEATH OF MRS LAMBERT

RESOLVED:

That the action plan prepared in response to the independent report into the circumstances surrounding the death of Mrs E Lambert be received, as agreed at the meeting on February 10 2009.

Executive expressed their thanks to Professor Derek Gardiner for his report.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was moved, seconded and

RESOLVED:

That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in category 3 and 7a of paragraph 10.4 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Southwark Constitution.

The following is a summary of the decisions taken in the closed section of the meeting.

15. MINUTES

The minutes of the closed section of the meeting held on April 28 2009 were approved as a correct record and signed by the chair.

16. REVENUES AND BENEFITS STRATEGIC APPROACH

The decision relation to this item is set out in the open minute item 12.

| The meeting ended at 6.50pm. |
|--|
| CHAIR: |
| DATED: |
| DEADLINE FOR NOTIFICATION OF CALL-IN UNDER SECTION 18 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES IS MIDNIGHT, WEDNESDAY MAY 27 2009. |
| THE ABOVE DECISIONS WILL NOT BE IMPLEMENTABLE UNTIL AFTER THAT |

DATE. SHOULD A DECISION OF THE EXECUTIVE BE CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY, THEN THE RELEVANT DECISION WILL BE HELD IN ABEYANCE PENDING THE

OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION.